Feuerbach, Karl Wilhelm | Encyclopedia.com

Complete Dictionary of Scientific Biography COPYRIGHT 2008 Charles Scribner's Sons 6-7 minutes

(b. Jena, Germany, 30 May 1800; d. Erlangen, Germany, 12 March 1834)

mathematics.

Karl Wilhelm was the third of the eleven children of Eva Wilhelmine Maria Troster and the famed German jurist Paul Johann Anselm Feuerbach. By the age of twenty-two, the gifted young mathematician had been awarded the Ph.D., had made a significant contribution to a pleasant and active branch of mathematical research, and had been named professor of mathematics at the Gymnasium at Erlangen.

Feuerbach's scientific output was small, and his fame as a mathematician rests entirely upon three publications, which constitute the total output of his scientific career. His most important contribution was a theorem in Euclidean geometry, the theorem of Feuerbach:

The circle which passes through the feet of the altitudes of a triangle touches all four of the circles which are tangent to the three sides of the triangle; it is internally tangent to the inscribed circle and externally tangent to each of the circles which touch the sides of the triangle externally[*Eigenschaften*]

In this statement one recognizes the nine-point circle of a triangle, which had been fully described though not named by Brianchon and Poncelet in 1821. The proof of this theorem was presented with a number of other conclusions on the geometry of the triangle in his small book *Eigenschaften einiger merkwürdigen Punkte...*, published in 1822. In this work Feuerbach developed a number of algebraic identities involving the lengths of the sides and other parts of a triangle and then proved that the two circles in question were tangent by showing that the distance between their centers was equal to the sum of their radii. He used as a model for this investigation Euler's "Solutio facilis problematum," a paper that had been published in 1765. Recognition came slowly, but many years after his death a number of papers appeared devoted to a discussion of the nine-point circle of a triangle and the theorem of Feuerbach.

In 1827 Feuerbach brought out the results of his second investigation. After an exhaustive analysis of this work, Moritz Cantor concluded that Feuerbach had proved to be an independent co-discoverer with Moebius of the theory of the homogeneous coordinates of a point in space. In the meantime, however, Feuerbach's teaching career was beset by difficulties and his health had become seriously impaired. At the age of twenty-eight he retired permanently and spent the rest of his life in Erlangen as a recluse.

BIBLIOGRAPHY

I. Original Works. Feuerbach's works are *Eigenschaften einiger merkwürdigen Punkte des geradlinigen Dreiecks und mehrerer durch sie bestimmten Linien und Figuren. Eine analytisch-trigonometrische Abhandlung* (Nuremberg,1822), a portion of which was ed. and trans. by R. A. Johnson as "Feuerbach on the Theorem Which Bears His Name," in D.E. Smith, ed., *A Source Book in Mathematics* (New York-London, 1929), paperback repr. (New York, 1959); "Einleitung zu dem Werke Analysis der dreyeckigen Pyramide durch die Methode der Coordinaten und projectionen. Ein Beytrag zu der analytischen Geometrie," in L. Oken, *Isis*, VI (Jena, 1826),565; and *Grundriss zu analytischen Untersuchungen der dreyeckigen Pyramide* (Nuremberg, 1827). An unpublished MS on the theory of the triangular pyramid, dated 7 July 1826, is in the Feuerbach family archives.

II. Secondary Literature. On the man and his work, see C. J. Brianchon and J. V. Poncelet, "Géométrie des courbes: Recherched sur la détermination d'une hyperbole équilatère, au moyen de quatre conditions données," in *Annales de mathematiques*, **11** (1 Jan. 1821); M. Cantor, "Karl Wilhelm Feuerbach," in *Sitzungsberichte der Heidelberger' Akademie der Wissenschaften*, Math.-naturwissen. Klasse, Abh. 25 (1910); L. Euler, "Solutio facilis problematum quorumdam geometricorum difficillimorum," in *Novi commentarii academiae scientiarum imperialis Petropolitanae*, **11** (1765), 103; H. Eulenberg, *Die Familie Feuerbach* (Stuttgart, 1924); L. Feuerbach, *Anselm Ritter von Feuerbachs biographischer Nachlass* (Leipzig. 1853); L. Guggenbuhl, "Karl Wilhelm Feuerbach, Mathematician," in *Scientific Monthly*, **81** (1955), 71; R.A. Johnson, *Modern Geometry: An Elementary Treatise on the Geometry of the Triangle and the Circle* (Boston-New York, 1929), repr. in paperback as *Advanced Euclidean Geometry* (New York, 1960); J. Lange, "Geschichte des Feuerbachschen Kreises," in *Wissenschaftliche Beilage zum Jahresbericht der Friedrichs Wederschen Obe-Realschule zu Berlin Programme No.114*(1894); J. S. Mackay, "History of the Nine Point Circle,"in *Proceedings of the Edinburgh Mathematical Society*, **11** (1892), 19; G. Rahbruch, *Paul Johann Anselm Feuerbach* (Vienna, 1934) and *Gestalten und Gedanken. Die Feuerbachs, Eine* geistige Dynastie (Leipzig, 1948); T. Spoerri, Genie und Krankheit (Basel-New York, 1952); J. Steiner, Die geometrischen Constructionen ausgefuhrt mittelst der geraden Linie und eines festen Kreises(Berlin, 1833); and Olry Terquem, "Considération sur le triangle rectiligne," in Nouvelles annales de mathématiques, **1** (1842), 196.

Laura Guggenbuhl